Digital Final Exam Information

for Dental Students

2023

Date of final exam: 19 June 2023, 9 am

Exam venue: Semmelweis University

The nationally standardised written final examination will be held digitally via the Final Exam Committee for the Medicine, Dentistry and Pharmacy (OZBV). Registration on the website is required! The written test questions are based on the integrated dental knowledge – acquired during the undergraduate dental training – which is renewed starting from this year. Each question has one single correct answer. Examinees trained in the three different languages complete the same set of questions in their respective language.

Exam preparation

Test questions and answers are provided on the <u>www.zarovizsga.hu</u> website in order to help the examinees' preparation. The final exam will be comprised of similar or the same questions.

Students can take mock exams as well. There are three types of mock exams:

short exam based on 3 chapters of the student's choice. Number of questions: 50. Duration:
45 minutes.

long exam based on 3 chapters of the student's choice. Number of questions: 180. Duration:
180 minutes.

• mock exam based on all final exam topics. Number of questions: 180. Duration: 180 minutes.

The final exam

Arrival at the venue:	8.15 am	
Duration of the exam:	180 minutes	9.00 am – 12.00 am
Number of exam questions:	180	

The digital interface allows forward and backward scrolling throughout the test taking. Any answer can be changed during the exam. The number of answered questions is displayed on the screen, and skipped questions are signalled with a warning.

Examinees may enter the exam room by presenting a valid photo ID and signing the attendance sheet. The exam supervisors and the Dean's Office staff will provide the necessary information to the examinees prior to the test taking.

During the written final examination, the head supervisor keeps a written record.

No electronic devices (mobile phones, laptops, etc.) as well as handwritten or printed materials (notes, textbooks) are allowed in the exam room. By signing the attendance sheet, the examinee declares having none of the above on their person.

The exam room seating arrangement is determined by the supervisors. During the examination, no more than one student is allowed to leave the room at any given time with the permission of the head supervisor. The time of departure and return will be indicated in the final exam's written record.

Examinees using any prohibited means during the written final exam – including any electronic or smart device – will be disqualified effective immediately and without warning. Disqualification results in a failed exam. The fact of disqualification must be indicated in the written record. Furthermore, disqualification will entail further disciplinary action.

Leaving the examination room is only allowed with legitimate reason with the permission of the head supervisor. At any given time, only one examinee is excused from the room. The time of the departure and return will be indicated on the student's exam paper along with the head supervisor's signature.

Exam results

Digital exam results and corrections will be available no later than 2 pm on exam day on the <u>www.zarovizsga.hu</u> website. Results can be accessed by entering your exam ID and password.

The unofficial results of paper-based exams will be available for five days after correction which is no later than 12 pm (noon) on the day after the final exam. Results can be accessed by entering your exam ID and password, both found at the bottom of the information sheet.

Threshold Scores

The threshold scores are determined by the decision based on the consensus of the four training institutions' representatives pursuant to the aggregate of nationwide examination results.

Appeals procedure

Remarks can be submitted 45 days prior to the written exam (day 0).

The system locks the material 30 days prior to the written exam (day 0). After this date, further remarks cannot be submitted. However, the practice interface will still be available for exam practice.

Timeline		
day 45	day 30	day 0
Practice + Submission of remarks	Only practising!	FINAL EXAM
(days 45 to 0)	(days 30 to 0)	(day 0)

Submitted remarks will be investigated. Questions/answers that receive legitimate complaints will be corrected.

Written complaints about the final exam questions may be submitted until 6 pm on examination day on the <u>www.zarovizsga.hu</u> website. Only technical complaints can be submitted about the questions.

Complaints about the correction of the paper-based exam questions may be submitted until 4 pm on the day after the examination. For submission, use your exam ID and password on the <u>www.zarovizsga.hu</u> website.

Legal remedies for the final examination are provided in accordance with Act CCIV of 2011 on National Tertiary Education and the "Credit-based Training and Exam Regulations of the Faculty of Medicine, the Faculty of Dentistry and the Faculty of Pharmaceutical Sciences" as part of the Organisational and Operational Regulations of Semmelweis University.

<u>Vis major</u>

In the event of a technical issue during the final exam, OZBV provides students with a prepared paper-based examination pack.

Prior to the exam, the candidate will receive an examination pack containing an information sheet, a data sheet, a two-page solution sheet and a test booklet. Each examinee is provided with the same set of questions in different order. You must put a clearly visible 'X' on the letter of the answer you think is the most appropriate solution with a blue ballpoint pen. Questions left with none or multiple answers will be considered incorrect answers.

We wish you good luck for your preparation and exam!

Please note that in order to ensure the seamless execution of your final exam, you will have the opportunity to take an in-person mock final exam, which will be conducted in the same way as the final exam. The venue and date of this will be announced at a later date. **If you would like to take part in the in-person mock exam, please let us know by filling in the respective form of the Student Council no later than midnight 19 April 2023.**

Budapest, 17 April 2023

Faculty of Dentistry Dean's Office